REGULATION

# GCSE Subject Level Conditions and Requirements for Physical Education

February 2020 (supersedes Ofqual/16/6021)



# Contents

Introduction	3
About this document	3
Requirements set out in this document	3
Revisions to this document	4
Summary of requirements	4
Subject Level Conditions	5
GCSE Subject Level Conditions for Physical Education	5
Assessment objectives	7
Assessment objectives – GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education	7
Assessment requirements	8
Requirements in relation to assessments for GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education	8
Appendix 1: Subject content (published by Department for Education)1	1
Appendix 2: Short course subject content (published by Department for Education).12	2
Appendix 3: Revisions to this document1	3

# Introduction

## About this document

This document is part of a suite of documents which sets out the regulatory requirements for awarding organisations offering GCSE qualifications (graded from 9 to 1).

We have developed these requirements with the intention that GCSE qualifications (graded from 9 to 1) should fulfil the following purposes:

- To provide evidence of students' achievements against demanding and fulfilling content;
- To provide a strong foundation for further academic and vocational study and for employment; and
- To provide (if required) a basis for schools and colleges to be held accountable for the performance of all of their students.

## Requirements set out in this document

This document sets out the GCSE Subject Level Conditions for Physical Education.

It also sets out our requirements in relation to:

- assessment objectives awarding organisations must comply with these requirements under Condition GCSE(Physical Education)1.2; and
- assessment awarding organisations must comply with these requirements under Condition GCSE(Physical Education)2.3.

Appendices 1 and 2 reproduce the requirements in relation to subject content (as published by the Department for Education) for Physical Education GCSE 1 and Physical Education GCSE short course, 2 respectively. Awarding organisations must comply with these requirements, as appropriate, under Condition GCSE(Physical Education)1.1.

With respect to all GCSE Qualifications (graded from 9 to 1) in Physical Education, awarding organisations must also comply with:

- our *General Conditions of Recognition*, 3 which apply to all awarding organisations and qualifications;
- our GCSE Qualification Level Conditions;4 and
- all relevant Regulatory Documents.5

<sup>1</sup> www.gov.uk/government/publications/gcse-physical-education

<sup>2</sup> www.gov.uk/government/publications/gcse-physical-education-short-course

<sup>3</sup> www.gov.uk/government/publications/general-conditions-of-recognition

<sup>4</sup> www.gov.uk/government/publications/gcse-9-to-1-qualification-level-conditions

<sup>5</sup> www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulatory-documents-list

## Revisions to this document

We have revised this document since it was originally published (see Appendix 3 for details), most recently in February 2020.

The February 2020 version of this document replaces all previous versions of *GCSE Subject Level Conditions and Requirements for Physical Education* with effect from 12:30pm on 14 February 2020. It incorporates the following change:

• updated Appendix 1 to incorporate the updated GCSE PE activity list (published by Department for Education)

## Summary of requirements

Subject Level Conditions	
GCSE(Physical Education)1	Compliance with content requirements
GCSE(Physical Education)2	Assessment

#### **Assessment objectives**

Assessment objectives – GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education

**Assessment requirements** 

Requirements in relation to assessments for GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education

Appendix 1 – Subject content (published by Department for Education) Physical Education GCSE subject content

# Appendix 2 – Short course subject content (published by Department for Education)

Physical Education GCSE short course subject content

Appendix 3 – Revisions to this document

**Revisions to this document** 

# **Subject Level Conditions**

# GCSE Subject Level Conditions for Physical Education

Condition GCSE(Physical Education)1	Compliance with content requirements
GCSE(Physical Education)1.1	In respect of each GCSE Qualification in Physical Education which it makes available, or proposes to make available, an awarding organisation must –
	<ul> <li>(a) comply with the requirements relating to that qualification set out in –</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>(i) for a GCSE qualification in Physical Education which is not a short course qualification, the document published by the Secretary of State entitled 'Physical Education GCSE subject content',6 document reference DFE-00697-2014, and</li> </ul>
	(ii) for a GCSE short course qualification in Physical Education, the document published by the Secretary of State entitled 'Physical Education GCSE short course subject content',7 document reference DFE-00057-2016,
	(b) have regard to any recommendations or guidelines relating to that qualification set out in those documents, and
	(c) interpret those documents in accordance with any requirements, and having regard to any guidance, which may be published by Ofqual and revised from time to time.
GCSE(Physical Education)1.2	In respect of each GCSE Qualification in Physical Education which it makes available, or proposes to make available, an awarding organisation must comply with any requirements, and have regard to any guidance, relating to the objectives to be met by any assessment for that qualification which may be published by Ofqual and revised from time to time.

6 www.gov.uk/government/publications/gcse-physical-education

7 www.gov.uk/government/publications/gcse-physical-education-short-course

Condition GCSE(Physical Education)2	Assessment
GCSE(Physical Education)2.1	Condition GCSE4.1 does not apply to any GCSE Qualification in Physical Education which an awarding organisation makes available or proposes to make available.
GCSE(Physical Education)2.2	In respect of the total marks available for a GCSE Qualification in Physical Education which it makes available, an awarding organisation must ensure that –
	<ul> <li>(a) 60 per cent of those marks are made available through Assessments by Examination, and</li> <li>(b) 40 per cent of those marks are made available through assessments set by the awarding organisation that are not Assessments by Examination.</li> </ul>
GCSE(Physical Education)2.3	An awarding organisation must ensure that in respect of each assessment for a GCSE Qualification in Physical Education which it makes available which is not an Assessment by Examination it complies with any requirements, and has regard to any guidance, which may be published by Ofqual and revised from time to time.

# Assessment objectives

# Assessment objectives – GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education

Condition GCSE(Physical Education)1.2 allows us to specify requirements relating to the objectives to be met by any assessment for all GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education.

The assessment objectives set out below constitute requirements for the purposes of Condition GCSE(Physical Education)1.2. Awarding organisations must comply with these requirements in relation to all GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education they make available or propose to make available.

	Objective	Weighting
A01	Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of the factors that underpin performance and involvement in physical activity and sport	25%
AO2	Apply knowledge and understanding of the factors that underpin performance and involvement in physical activity and sport	20%
AO3	Analyse and evaluate the factors that underpin performance and involvement in physical activity and sport	15%
AO4 (GCSE short course)	Demonstrate and apply relevant skills and techniques in physical activity and sport	40%
AO4 (GCSE qualifications other than short course)	Demonstrate and apply relevant skills and techniques in physical activity and sport Analyse and evaluate performance	40%

# Assessment requirements

## Requirements in relation to assessments for GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education

Condition GCSE(Physical Education)2.3 allows us to specify requirements and guidance in relation to assessments which are not Assessments by Examination for GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education.

We set out our requirements for the purposes of Condition GCSE(Physical Education)2.3 below. Except where specified, these requirements apply to all GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education which an awarding organisation makes available or proposes to make available.

### Forms of non-examination assessment

Condition GCSE(Physical Education)2.2(b) states that an awarding organisation must ensure that of the total marks available for a GCSE Qualification in Physical Education, 40 per cent of those marks shall be made available through assessments set by the awarding organisation which are not Assessments by Examination.

In respect of that 40 per cent, an awarding organisation must ensure that -

- (a) for a GCSE qualification in Physical Education which is not a short course qualification
  - (i) 30 per cent of the total marks available for the qualification are made available through tasks which assess a Learner's performance in physical activity and sport (the 'Performance Assessment'), and
  - (ii) 10 per cent of the total marks available for the qualification are made available through a task which assesses a Learner's ability to analyse and evaluate performance to bring about personal improvement in physical activity and sport (the 'Performance Analysis Assessment'), and
- (b) for a GCSE short course qualification in Physical Education, those marks are only made available through tasks which assess a Learner's performance in physical activity and sport (the 'Performance Assessment').

## The Performance Assessment

An awarding organisation must ensure that each Performance Assessment is designed and set to require each Learner to be assessed in the role of player/performer in –

- (a) a sport or activity drawn from the list of team activities specified in the document published by the Secretary of State entitled 'GCSE PE activity list',<sup>8</sup> document reference DfE-00009-2020 (the 'Activity List'),
- (b) a different sport or activity drawn from the list of individual activities specified in the Activity List, and

<sup>8</sup> www.gov.uk/government/publications/gcse-physical-education

- (c) for a GCSE qualification in Physical Education which is not a short course qualification, a further different sport or activity drawn from
  - (i) the list of team activities specified in the Activity List, or
  - (ii) the list of individual activities specified in the Activity List.

In respect of each Performance Assessment involving a sport or activity which is not capable of live moderation, an awarding organisation must ensure that the Centre which delivered the assessment –

- (a) obtains an audiovisual recording of the evidence generated by each Learner in that assessment which allows the awarding organisation to effectively
  - (i) moderate that assessment, and
  - (ii) authenticate the evidence generated by the Learner in that assessment, and
- (b) provides that recording to the awarding organisation on request.

#### The Performance Analysis Assessment

The requirements in this section do not apply to GCSE short course qualifications in Physical Education which an awarding organisation makes available, or proposes to make available.

An awarding organisation must ensure that each Performance Analysis Assessment is designed and set to require each Learner to analyse performance in a sport or activity listed in the Activity List.

A Learner is not required to analyse, but is not precluded from analysing, his or her performance in one of the sports or activities which he or she has undertaken for the purposes of the Performance Assessment.

## Marking of assessments

Evidence generated by a Learner in an assessment for a GCSE Qualification in Physical Education which is not an Assessment by Examination may be marked –

- (a) by the awarding organisation or a person connected to the awarding organisation,
- (b) by a Centre, or
- (c) through a combination of (a) and (b).

In any event, the awarding organisation must demonstrate to Ofqual's satisfaction in its assessment strategy that –

- (a) it has taken all reasonable steps to identify the risk of any Adverse Effect which may result from its approach to marking of assessments (and moderation where appropriate), and
- (b) where such a risk is identified, it has taken all reasonable steps to prevent that Adverse Effect or, where it cannot be prevented, to mitigate that Adverse Effect.

In respect of any performance by a Learner which it observes for the purposes of moderation, an awarding organisation must ensure that –

- (a) a complete audiovisual recording is made of the evidence used to support the outcome of that moderation, and
- that recording is retained by the awarding organisation for a sufficient period of time to allow for the completion of -
  - (i) all relevant enquiries about results and appeals, and
  - (ii) all appropriate steps to correct or, where relevant, to mitigate the effect of any failure discovered through such enquiries about results and appeals.

# Appendix 1: Subject content (published by Department for Education)



# **Physical Education**

# **GCSE** subject content

January 2015

## Contents

The content for GCSEs in physical education	3
Introduction	3
Subject aims and learning outcomes	3
Subject content	4
Scope of study	4

## The content for GCSEs in physical education

### Introduction

1. The GCSE subject content sets out the knowledge, understanding and skills common to all GCSE specifications in a given subject. Together with the assessment objectives, it provides the framework within which awarding organisations create the detail of their specifications, so ensuring progression from key stage 3 national curriculum requirements and the possibilities for development into A level.

### Subject aims and learning outcomes

2. This document sets out the learning outcomes and content coverage required for GCSEs in physical education.

3. GCSE study in physical education should be broad, coherent and practical, encourage students to be inspired, motivated and challenged by the subject and enable them to make informed decisions about further learning opportunities and career pathways.

4. GCSE specifications in physical education should equip students with the knowledge, understanding, skills and values to develop and maintain their performance in physical activities and understand the benefits to health, fitness and well-being. This will require them to:

- develop theoretical knowledge and understanding of the factors that underpin physical activity and sport and use this knowledge to improve performance
- understand how the physiological and psychological state affects performance in physical activity and sport
- perform effectively in different physical activities by developing skills and techniques and selecting and using tactics, strategies and/or compositional ideas
- develop their ability to analyse and evaluate to improve performance in physical activity and sport
- understand the contribution which physical activity and sport make to health, fitness and well-being
- understand key socio-cultural influences which can affect people's involvement in physical activity and sport

## Subject content

5. GCSE specifications in physical education must enable students to make the connections between theory and practice so that they are able to apply their understanding of the factors that underpin physical activity and sport to improve performance. They will be required to use the technical vocabulary, terminology and definitions associated with the study of physical education.

6. The content sets out the full range of content for GCSE specifications in physical education. Awarding organisations may increase the depth and breadth within the specified topics in order to consolidate teaching of the subject.

7. Students will be assessed in three activities in the role of performer.

#### Scope of study

8. GCSE specifications in physical education should require students to study:

#### Applied anatomy and physiology

9. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of the key body systems and how they impact on health, fitness and performance in physical activity and sport, including:

- the structure and functions of the musculo-skeletal system
- the structure and functions of the cardio-respiratory system
- anaerobic and aerobic exercise
- the short and long term effects of exercise

#### Movement analysis

10. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of the basic principles of movement and their effect on performance in physical activity and sport, including:

- lever systems, examples of their use in activity and the mechanical advantage they provide in movement
- planes and axes of movement

#### **Physical training**

11. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of the principles of training and different training methods in order to plan, carry out, monitor and evaluate personal exercise and training programmes, including:

- the relationship between health and fitness and the role that exercise plays in both
- the components of fitness, benefits for sport and how fitness is measured and improved
- the principles of training and their application to personal exercise/training programmes
- how to optimise training and prevent injury
- effective use of warm up and cool down

#### Use of data

12. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of data analysis in relation to key areas of physical activity and sport. Students should be able to:

- demonstrate an understanding of how data are collected both qualitative and quantitative
- present data (including tables and graphs)
- analyse and evaluate data

#### Sport psychology

13. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of the psychological factors that can affect performers in physical activity and sport, including:

- classification of skills (basic/complex, open/closed)
- the use of goal setting and SMART targets to improve and/or optimise performance
- guidance and feedback on performance
- mental preparation for performance

#### Socio-cultural influences

14. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of the socio-cultural factors that impact on physical activity and sport, and the impact of sport on society including:

- engagement patterns of different social groups in physical activity and sport
- commercialisation of physical activity and sport
- ethical and socio-cultural issues in physical activity and sport

#### Health, fitness and well-being

15. Students should develop knowledge and understanding of the benefits of participating in physical activity and sport to health, fitness and well-being, including:

- physical, emotional and social health, fitness and well-being
- the consequences of a sedentary lifestyle
- energy use, diet, nutrition and hydration

#### Practical performance

16. Students should develop their ability and aptitude in physical activities, demonstrating the skills and techniques outlined below. GCSE specifications in physical education must require students to:

- be assessed in three different activities in the role of player/performer. One of these assessments must be in a team sport/activity, one assessment must be in an individual sport/ activity, with the third assessment being from either a team or individual sport/activity. Students can only be assessed once in any sport or activity
- demonstrate skills in physical activity and sport, applying appropriate technique(s)
- demonstrate and apply appropriate decision making skills, strategies and/ or compositional ideas within physical activity and sport, taking into account personal strengths and weaknesses
- demonstrate ideas and problem solving solutions in spontaneous and/or predetermined ways whilst under pressure in physical activity and sport
- use appropriate physical characteristics/attributes (e.g. strength, stamina, speed, agility, flexibility, coordination) to achieve successful performance in physical activity and sport
- demonstrate psychological control (e.g. arousal, anxiety, aggression) to achieve successful performance (and fair play) in physical activity and sport
- adhere to 'rules', health and safety guidelines, and consider appropriate risk management strategies in physical activity and sport
- analyse and evaluate performance to bring about personal improvement in physical activity and sport
- demonstrate their ability in team sports and activities by:

- applying team strategies and/or compositional ideas taking account of the strengths and weaknesses of fellow team member(s), as appropriate
- showing awareness of, and responding to, the actions of other player(s)/performer(s)
- communicating effectively with other player(s)/performer(s)
- demonstrating their individual role in achieving the collective outcome



#### © Crown copyright 2015

You may re-use this document/publication (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0. Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

To view this licence:

visit <u>www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3</u> email <u>psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk</u>

About this publication:

enquiries <u>www.education.gov.uk/contactus</u> download <u>www.gov.uk/government/publications</u>

Reference: DFE-00697-2014



Follow us on Twitter: @educationgovuk



Like us on Facebook: <u>facebook.com/educationgovuk</u>



### **GCSE PE activity list**

This list is based upon the suitability of activities as a means of assessing students' skills as part of a physical education GCSE qualification. The Department for Education and awarding organisations developed a set of five key considerations which were applied to each activity in order to ensure parity and rigour. These considerations take into account Ofqual's principles for non-exam assessment (outlined on page 3 here).

In 2018-2019 the Department conducted a review of the activity list. This review resulted in the addition of some activities. Therefore there are two separate lists: the current list that applies to qualifications awarded until 2021 for full GCSE or 2020 for short course GCSE and the new list that applies to qualifications awarded from 2022 for full GCSE or 2021 for short course GCSE.

The list of activities below is a full and complete list of all available activities. The inclusion or non-inclusion of an activity in the proposed list does not represent a view on the legitimacy or value of the activity, but only its suitability for assessing students' skills at GCSE as set out above.

Students must be assessed in three different activities in the role of player/performer: one of these must be a team activity and one must be an individual activity. The third activity may come from either list. Candidates may only be assessed once in any activity, e.g. they may not be assessed in doubles tennis and also singles tennis.

Team Activity	Comments
Association football	Cannot be five-a-side or futsal
Badminton	Cannot be assessed with singles
Basketball	
Camogie	Cannot be assessed with hurling
Cricket	
Dance	This can only be used for one activity
Gaelic football	

# List of activities applying to qualifications awarded until 2021 for full GCSE or 2020 for short course GCSE

Handball	
Hockey	Must be field hockey, not roller hockey
Hurling	Cannot be assessed with camogie
Lacrosse	
Netball	
Rowing	Cannot be assessed with sculling, canoeing or kayaking
Rugby league	Cannot be assessed with rugby union (sevens or fifteen a side). Cannot be tag rugby
Rugby union	Can be assessed as sevens or fifteen a side. Cannot be assessed with rugby league. Cannot be tag rugby. This can only be used for one activity
Squash	Cannot be assessed with singles
Table tennis	Cannot be assessed with singles
Tennis	Cannot be assessed with singles
Volleyball	
Specialist activity	
Blind cricket	
Goal ball	
Powerchair football	
Table cricket	
Wheelchair basketball	
Wheelchair rugby	

Individual Activity	Comments
Amateur boxing	
Athletics	
Badminton	Cannot be assessed with doubles
Canoeing	Cannot be assessed with kayaking, rowing or sculling

Cycling	Track or road cycling only
Dance	This can only be used for one activity
Diving	Platform diving
Equestrian	
Golf	
Gymnastics	Floor routines and apparatus only
Kayaking	Cannot be assessed with canoeing, rowing or sculling
Rock climbing	Can be indoor or outdoor
Rowing	Cannot be assessed with sculling, canoeing or kayaking. This can only be used for one activity
Sculling	Cannot be assessed with rowing, canoeing or kayaking
Skiing	Outdoor/indoor on snow; cannot be assessed with snowboarding. Must not be dry slopes
Snowboarding	
Squash	Cannot be assessed with doubles
Swimming	Not synchronised swimming
Table Tennis	Cannot be assessed with doubles
Tennis	Cannot be assessed with doubles
Trampolining	
Specialist activity	
Boccia	
Polybat	

# List of activities applying to qualifications awarded from 2022 for full GCSE or 2021 for short course GCSE

Team Activity	Comments
Acrobatic gymnastics	Cannot be assessed with gymnastics
Association football	Cannot be five-a-side. Cannot be assessed with futsal

De des intes	
Badminton	Cannot be assessed with singles
Basketball	Cannot be street basketball
Camogie	Cannot be assessed with hurling
Cricket	
Dance	This can only be used for one activity
Figure skating	This can only be used for one activity. Cannot be assessed with dance
Futsal	Cannot be assessed with football
Gaelic football	
Handball	
Hockey	Must be field hockey
Hurling	Cannot be assessed with camogie
Ice hockey	Cannot be assessed with inline roller hockey
Inline roller hockey	Cannot be assessed with ice hockey
Lacrosse	
Netball	
Rowing	Cannot be assessed with sculling, canoeing or kayaking
Rugby league	Cannot be assessed with rugby union (sevens or fifteen a side). Cannot be tag rugby
Rugby union	Can be assessed as sevens or fifteen a side. Cannot be assessed with rugby league. Cannot be tag rugby. This can only be used for one activity
Sailing	Royal Yachting Association recognised sailing boat classes only. The list can be found online at: <u>https://www.rya.org.uk/racing/youth-</u> junior/info/Pages/recognised-classes.aspx. This can only be used for one activity. Students must perform as helmsman
Sculling	Cannot be assessed with rowing, canoeing or kayaking. Cannot be assessed with individual sculling
Squash	Cannot be assessed with singles

Table tennis	Cannot be assessed with singles
Tennis	Cannot be assessed with singles
Volleyball	
Water polo	
Specialist activity	
Blind cricket	
Goal ball	
Powerchair football	
Table cricket	
Wheelchair basketball	
Wheelchair rugby	

Individual Activity	Comments
Amateur boxing	
Athletics	Long distance running must not exceed 5,000 metres
Badminton	Cannot be assessed with doubles
Canoeing	Cannot be assessed with kayaking, rowing or sculling
Cycling	Track, road or BMX cycling (racing, not tricks) only
Dance	This can only be used for one activity
Diving	Platform diving
Equestrian	
Figure skating	This can only be used for one activity. Cannot be assessed with dance
Golf	
Gymnastics	Floor routines and apparatus only
Kayaking	Cannot be assessed with canoeing, rowing or sculling
Rock climbing	Can be indoor or outdoor

Sailing	Royal Yachting Association recognised sailing boat classes only. The list can be found online at: <u>https://www.rya.org.uk/racing/youth-</u> junior/info/Pages/recognised-classes.aspx. This can only be used for one activity. Students must perform as helmsman	
Sculling	Cannot be assessed with rowing, canoeing or kayaking. Cannot be assessed with team sculling	
Skiing	Outdoor/indoor on snow; cannot be assessed with snowboarding. Must not be dry slopes	
Snowboarding	Outdoor/indoor on snow. Must not be on dry slopes	
Squash	Cannot be assessed with doubles	
Swimming	Not synchronised swimming, personal survival or lifesaving	
Table Tennis	Cannot be assessed with doubles	
Tennis	Cannot be assessed with doubles	
Trampolining		
Windsurfing		
Specialist activity		
Boccia		
Polybat		

The five considerations were:

#### The range and demand of skills and techniques in the activity

This considers whether the activity meets Ofqual's Non Examined Assessment (NEA) rationale and whether the skills needed to perform each included activity have comparable levels of difficulty. This aims to ensure that activities are comparably rigorous and there is parity of assessment across practical activities.

During the review of 2018-19, we considered whether activities put forward for inclusion were comparable with activities on the existing list. The skills needed to perform the activity needed to have comparable levels of difficulty to other activities already on the list.

#### The application of tactics/strategies/composition in the activity

This considers whether the activity enables students to understand and implement tactics, strategies, and/or composition. An example of tactics and strategy might be a

team counter-attacking in football where the student has to show discipline in how they play in order for the team to be successful in this area. An example of composition would be the linking up of movement and gymnastic skills when performing a routine in gymnastics.

#### The ability to develop skills over a significant period of time

This considers whether successful performance in the activity requires the development of skills over time. For example, if proficiency can be gained in a short time span (e.g. by attending a two-day residential or workshop experience, despite having no prior exposure to that activity) then these types of activities are not considered comparable to others on the list.

#### Suitable conditions in which to perform

All activities must have a competitive or formal condition in which students can be assessed. Students cannot be assessed in a recreational form of the activity. An example of a competitive condition in this context would be an 11-a-side football game, whereas a formal condition could refer to a gymnastic event.

# The level of performance can be realistically assessed by PE practitioners (teachers/ moderators)

This considers whether activities can be accurately and robustly assessed by practitioners. Some activities are so specialist or niche that specific expertise in that activity is required for valid and reliable assessment; these type of activities are not included the list.

It must be possible for activities to be either moderated live or for filmed evidence of a suitable quality to be produced to ensure reliable internal assessment and external moderation. Activities which cannot be filmed live in appropriate detail and accuracy are not included in the list.

In addition to the considerations above, all activities on the list must be sports recognised by Sport England.

#### **Disability activities**

Accessibility and inclusion for students has been addressed in a number of ways.

A number of specialist activities are included in the activity list.

Any of the listed activities may be adapted or adjusted to meet the needs of students who share protected characteristics, so long as any adaptation or adjustment does not compromise the rigour and validity of the assessment. Often it is the context of the performance which changes, such as the use of adapted equipment or rules and regulations. In some cases, a particular move or technique required in an activity can be substituted for a suitable alternative, as appropriate.

© Crown copyright 2019

Reference: DfE-00009-2020

# Appendix 2: Short course subject content (published by Department for Education)



# **Physical education**

# **GCSE short course subject content**

**March 2016** 

## Contents

The	The content for physical education GCSE short course	
lı	ntroduction	3
A	Aims and objectives	3
S	Subject content	3
	Scope of study	4

## The content for physical education GCSE short course

### Introduction

 The GCSE short course subject content sets out the knowledge, understanding and skills common to all GCSE short course specifications in physical education.
 Together with the assessment objectives, this content provides the framework within which awarding organisations create the detail of their specifications.

### Aims and objectives

2. GCSE study in physical education must be broad, coherent and practical, must encourage students to be inspired, motivated and challenged by the subject, and must enable them to make informed decisions about further educational opportunities and career pathways.

3. GCSE short course specifications in physical education must equip students with the knowledge, understanding, skills and values to develop and maintain their performance in physical activities and understand the benefits to health, fitness and wellbeing. This will require students to:

- develop theoretical knowledge and understanding of the factors that underpin physical activity and sport and use this knowledge to improve performance
- understand how the physiological affects performance in physical activity and sport
- perform effectively in different physical activities by developing skills and techniques, and selecting and using tactics, strategies and/or compositional ideas
- develop their ability to analyse and evaluate to improve performance in physical activity and sport
- understand the contribution which physical activity and sport make to health, fitness and wellbeing

## Subject content

4. GCSE short course specifications in physical education must enable students to make the connections between theory and practice so that they are able to apply their understanding of the factors that underpin physical activity and sport to improve performance. Students will be required to use the technical vocabulary, terminology and definitions associated with the study of physical education.

5. The content sets out the full range of content for GCSE short course specifications in physical education. Awarding organisations may increase the depth and breadth within the specified topics in order to consolidate teaching of the subject.

#### Scope of study

6. GCSE short course specifications in physical education must require students to demonstrate knowledge, understanding and skills in the following areas:

#### Applied anatomy and physiology

- the key body systems and how they impact on health, fitness and performance in physical activity and sport, including:
  - the structure and functions of the musculo-skeletal system
  - the structure and functions of the cardio-respiratory system
  - anaerobic and aerobic exercise
  - the short and long term effects of exercise

#### Movement analysis

- the basic principles of movement and their effect on performance in physical activity and sport, including:
  - lever systems, examples of their use in activity and the mechanical advantage they provide in movement
  - planes and axes of movement

#### Use of data

- data analysis in relation to key areas of physical activity and sport, including:
  - demonstrate an understanding of how data are collected both qualitative and quantitative
  - present data (including tables and graphs)
  - analyse and evaluate data

#### Health, fitness and wellbeing

- the benefits of participating in physical activity and sport to health, fitness and wellbeing, including:
  - physical, emotional and social health, fitness and wellbeing
  - the consequences of a sedentary lifestyle
  - energy use, diet, nutrition and hydration

#### **Practical performance**

7. Specifications must require students to develop their ability and aptitude in two different physical activities in the role of player/performer. One of these must be in a team sport/activity and one must be in an individual sport/activity. Through these activities, students must be required to:

- demonstrate skills in physical activity and sport, applying appropriate technique(s)
- demonstrate appropriate decision making skills, strategies and/or compositional ideas within physical activity and sport, taking into account personal strengths and weaknesses
- demonstrate ideas and problem solving solutions in spontaneous and/or predetermined ways whilst under pressure in physical activity and sport
- use appropriate physical characteristics/attributes (e.g. strength, stamina, speed, agility, flexibility and coordination) to achieve successful performance in physical activity and sport
- demonstrate psychological control (e.g. arousal, anxiety and aggression) to achieve successful performance (and fair play) in physical activity and sport
- adhere to 'rules', health and safety guidelines, and consider appropriate risk management strategies in physical activity and sport
- demonstrate their ability in team sports and activities by:
  - applying team strategies and/or compositional ideas taking account of the strengths and weaknesses of fellow team member(s), as appropriate
  - showing awareness of, and responding to, the actions of other player(s)/performer(s)
  - communicating effectively with other player(s)/performer(s)
  - demonstrating their individual role in achieving the collective outcome



#### © Crown copyright 2016

This publication (not including logos) is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0 except where otherwise stated. Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

To view this licence:

visit	www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3		
email	psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk		
write to	Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London, TW9 4DU		

#### About this publication:

enquiries <u>www.education.gov.uk/contactus</u> download <u>www.gov.uk/government/publications</u>

Reference: DFE-00057-2016



Follow us on Twitter: @educationgovuk



Like us on Facebook: <u>facebook.com/educationgovuk</u>

# Appendix 3: Revisions to this document

The table below sets out when the *GCSE Subject Level Conditions and Requirements for Physical Education* initially came into force and when they were subsequently revised.

Revisions	Date in force
Incorporated revised GCSE PE activity list (published by Department for Education)	14 February 2020
Ofqual/20/6581	
Incorporated new subject content for GCSE short course qualifications in Physical Education	27 May 2016
Condition GCSE(Physical Education 1) – Compliance with content requirements (amended)	
Assessment objectives – GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education (amended)	
Requirements in relation to assessments for GCSE Qualifications in Physical Education (amended)	
(Ofqual/16/6021)	
First published	8 July 2015
(Ofqual/15/5667)	



© Crown Copyright 2020

This publication is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0 except where otherwise stated.

To view this licence, visit

www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/

or write to

Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU

Published by:



Earlsdon Park 53-55 Butts Road Coventry CV1 3BH

0300 303 3344 public.enquiries@ofqual.gov.uk www.gov.uk/ofqual

February 2020

Ofqual/20/6581